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TRANSIT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

SOLICITATION NO. 2019-RFP-05 

ADDENDUM NO. 4 

 

ADDENDUM DATE: November 25, 2019 

Notice to all potential PROPOSERS, the following Addendum No. 4 is being issued for 
the above referenced project. All clarifications, amendments, additions, revisions 
and/or modifications specified in this addendum are hereby made part of the RFP. 
Except as stated below, all other terms to the original RFP remain unchanged. 

This Addendum consists of SolTrans’ responses to Proposer questions, Attachments 
1-16, and changes to the RFP. 

Scope of Changes: 

1. The required value of the peformance bond, as referenced in the RFP, is 
reduced from 100% to 25% of the contract value of the 5th year of operations. 
The performance bond shall be renewable each year for the entire term of the 
contract, including option years if exercised. 

2. Appendix B.8 of the RFP is replaced with the Revised Appendix B.8 Price 
Schedule found in Attachment 1-A to this Addendum. The General Pricing for 
Fiscal Year Table included on RFP page 58 is replaced with the new SolTrans 
Pricing Form found in Attachment 1-B of this Addendum. 
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Questions and Answers: 

The responses to proposer inquires, and any other information provided, unless 
incorporated into a formal addenda to the RFP, are not a part of the contract, and are 
provided for proposer convenience only. In some instances, the question and answer 
may represent a summary of the matters discussed rather than a word-for-word 
recitation. Proposers are cautioned that subsequent responses or contract addenda 
may affect or vary a response previously given. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
1 Would SolTrans consider a 25% of annual 

value Performance Bond? The 100% 
value is unusual and an increased cost to 
SolTrans. Rarely are bonds exercised and 
the funds are only needed to cover costs 
while securing a new contractor 

SolTrans has decided to reduce 
performance bond requirement to 25% of 
the contract value of the 5th year of 
operations and shall be renewable each 
year and be applicable to each option 
year exercised. No the annual renewable 
amount on the performance bond will not 
be negotiable during the option years. 

2 Will SolTrans please consider reducing 
the amount of the requested Performance 
Bond amount to 25% of the value of the 
fifth year of operations (FY 2024-25)? 
Typical Performance Bond requirements 
in the transportation services industry 
range between 10% and 25% of annual 
revenue, which is more commensurate 
with the risk of having to change 
Contractors should the need arise. The 
reduced bond requirement will also 
reduce costs to SolTrans. 

See QA# 1.  

3 Regarding Performance Bond and 
Performance Bond Renewal, “Pursuant to 
the RFP, the CONTRACTOR shall 
maintain a valid Performance Bond in a 
form satisfactory to SolTrans, and in an 
amount equal to the value of the fifth year 
of operations (FY 2024-25) as set forth in 
Exhibit C throughout the entire term of 
this Contract, including option years if 
exercised, guaranteeing the 
CONTRACTOR's full performance under 
this Contract.” If SolTrans does not elect 
to reduce the amount of the Performance 
Bond, will the bond amount remain equal 
to the fifth year of operations for the five 
one-year option periods? Or will the 
Contractor have the ability to negotiate 
with SolTrans the annually renewable 
amount of the Performance Bond during 
the option period? 

See QA# 1.  

4 Typical performance bonds for these 
types of contracts are in the amount of 
10% of the annual value. Would SolTrans 
consider reducing the amount to the 
requested performance bond in order to 
obtain more cost-effective proposals? 
Further, please confirm an annually 
renewable bond is acceptable. 

See QA# 1.  
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
5 Does the contractor have responsibility in 

regard to the Taxi and Lyft Programs, and 
if so, please describe. 

The contractor does not administer 
programs; responsibility is limited to 
selling fare media for Taxi Programs 
through a 3rd party provided debit card 
terminal and providing information. 

6 Please confirm the contractor has no 
responsibility for managing the Solano 
Mobility Transportation Program? 

Confirmed.  The contractor's Customer 
Service staff may refer to, or contact 
Solano Mobility to provide service, and 
may sell products through the ticket 
office. 

7 Please confirm that the General Pricing 
Table should equate to an annual cost for 
the base service.   

See attached Attachment 1-B - SolTrans 
Pricing Form provided on Excel. 
Proposers are to use this worksheet in 
their price proposal. Also see Attachment 
1-A - Revised Appendix B.8 Price 
Schedule.  

8 Please confirm that SolTrans is 
responsible for vehicle registration on all 
client provided vehicles. 

Yes 

9 Would SolTrans consider extending the 
Due Date several weeks to January 10th? 
There is a large amount of information 
and pricing that needs to be put together 
in an effort to provide a complete 
proposal to include the optional services. 

No. SolTrans has extend the submission 
due date to December 20 as stated in 
Addendum No. 2. 

10 Coach USA respectfully request that the 
authority extend the proposal due date by 
two weeks to allow sufficient time to 
contractors to review the answers to 
submitted questions. 

No 

11 This section requires listing wage rates for 
all positions. Is this permitted in the 
Technical proposal or is there a place to 
list this in the Price proposal? 

Technical proposals may include 
proposed salary ranges for staff positions 
as necessary to demonstrate 
competitiveness. Specific pricing 
information for SolTrans should NOT be 
included in technical proposals. Provide 
an itemized list of positions with wage 
rates in the price proposal in accordance 
with Attachments 1-A and 1-B provided. 

12 VTC Ticket office - Are there any 
requirements for the number of customer 
service reps that should be on duty during 
each hour of the day? Is the Contractor 
allowed to closed the window/office for 
employee breaks? What about employee 
meal periods? 

Generally, 2 CSRs. Coverage is required 
for breaks. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
13 Please confirm that SolTrans will provide 

the incoming contractor with office space 
and vehicles for implementation and 
training activities during a possible 
transition. 

SolTrans will work with the successful 
Proposer to facilitate office space and 
vehicle availability for on-boarding and 
training purposes to the extent feasible 
without disrupting current operations. 
Additional training resources required 
may be at Proposers expense. 

14 During the transition, how many vehicles 
will be made available to the incoming 
contractor to perform training? Please 
confirm SolTrans will provide office and 
training space for the Contractor during 
the transition. 

See QA# 13.  

15 Will SolTrans please specify if facility 
space will be made available for 
interviewing and training during the 
transition period? 

See QA# 13.  

16 How many vehicles will be made available 
to the incoming contractor to perform 
training during the start-up period? 

See QA# 13.  

17 Please provide all required forms in Word 
format and Price pages in Excel format 

New SolTrans Pricing Form is provided in 
Excel format. See Attachment 1-B. 

18 Please provide bidders with unbillable 
slack data by day for the last 12 months 

Data not available. 

19 Is the Contractor able to segment a 
separate VLAN off SolTrans internet 
service? 

Yes, but no ongoing IT support will be 
provided. 

20 Is there rack space available for 
Contractor servers, switch, routers, etc? 

Negotiable, space is limited. 

21 Please confirm Contractor can install their 
own managed router and switch for 
segmented VLAN. 

Yes, resources permitting. 

22 Please provide a copy of the current labor 
agreements (ATU FR Drivers, Teamsters 
Paratransit Drivers, any others) and the 
contact name and number for the union 
representative. 

See Attachments 2 and 3 

23 Are the current employees/ operators 
represented by a collective bargaining 
unit? If so, please provide name and 
contact information, In addition please 
provide the current Collective Bargaining 
Agreement (CBA). 

See Attachments 2 and 3 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
24 Please provide bidders with the 

anticipated fleet replacement schedule 
and current mileage for all vehicles on the 
fleet list provided.  
Please also provide major component 
replacement records for the fleet. 

SolTrans plans to start buying electric 
buses for local routes in 2022, and full 
replacement of SolTrans' Gillig Electric 
Hybrid Buses with Battery Electric Buses 
(BEB) starting in 2023 through 2025. 
SolTrans' fleet of MCI CNG express 
coaches would begin replacements in 
2029 with goal to be a zero emission fleet 
by this time. Also see Attachment 8. 

25 Please provide the actual hours and miles 
for 2019 for each component. Please 
describe plans, if any, for any changes to 
the volume of hours in the next 12 
months. 

SolTrans expects approximately 398 
hours per weekday, 178 hours Saturdays 
and 79 hours Sundays. See also 
Attachment 15. In August 2020 the Red 
Line is expected to begin providing twice 
hourly service to Fairfield. SolTrans 
expects to run approximately 800,000 
local miles and 1,240,000 express miles 
in Fiscal Year 2019-20. 

26 For the purposes of insurance and wage 
costing, please provide the current 
revenue miles and revenue hours; current 
total miles and total hours; and current 
deadhead miles and deadhead hours for 
the provision of these services. Please 
provide the current performance achieved 
in each of the services as it relates to the 
listed performance standards in the RFP. 

See QA# 25. 

27 Please confirm the volume of hours 
and/or miles on which proposers should 
base their proposals.  Please describe 
plans for any changes to the volume of 
hours in the next 12 months. 

See QA# 25. 

28 Please provide the Revenue Hours and 
Miles that Contractors should use for the 
Price Pages and calculations for each 
service. Please clarify whether the levels 
of service will remain the same over the 
term of the contract. Please clarify if the 
Contractor should submit separate price 
pages for each year or create a 
spreadsheet with each year in a separate 
column, etc 

See QA# 25. 

29 To be consistent within the evaluation of 
proposals, will SolTrans please provide 
projected revenue hours for fixed routes 
and gate to gate hours for paratransit in 
each year of the contract term? 

See QA# 25. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
30 In order to get “apples to apples” price 

comparisons, please confirm the revenue 
hours and miles that bidders should base 
their pricing on for the entire 10 year 
possible contract term. 

See QA# 25. 

31 Please provide/confirm the current 
revenue miles and hours; current 
deadhead miles and hours; and current 
total miles and hours for each services.  

See QA# 25. 

32 Please provide a list of the positions 
currently provided by the contractor for 
this operation. Please indicate whether 
these positions are 100% dedicated to 
this contract. 

Per CA Labor Code 1070-1074 
information regarding current staffing 
were provided under separate cover to 
bona fide Proposers as part of Addendum 
No. 2 issued on November 20, 2019. 
Employee names, addresses dates of 
hire, individual wage rates, ASE 
certifications, and benefit levels will be 
made available to the successful 
proposer. All positions are 100% 
dedicated to the SolTrans Contract. 

33 Please provide information regarding the 
current benefits and co-pays for the 
current employees to include drivers and 
staff.  Please include as many specifics as 
possible. 

See QA# 32 

34 Per Labor Code/Staffing 1070, we intend 
to hire as many of the existing employees 
as possible. In order for us to ensure that 
they make at least as much, or more than 
they do now, please provide a seniority 
list for ALL current employees for this 
contract, and indicate position, full time or 
part time, length of service, and current 
rate of pay. 

See QA# 32 

35 Please provide an organizational chart, 
showing the existing employees provided 
by the incumbent contractor. Please 
include position, and number of staff in 
each position. 

See QA# 32. 

36 Please provide the required CA Labor 
Code/Staffing 1070-1074 information 
regarding the existing workforce. Please 
make sure to provide required data for 
bargained and non-bargained employees. 

See QA# 32. 

37 Please provide a list of current 
technicians and ASE certifications, with 
pay rate, and classification.  

See QA# 32. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
38 What is the version of Trapeze PASS 

provided? Are there any other Trapeze 
modules provided? Are MDTs/Tablets 
provided in the vehicles for trip 
communication with Dispatch? 

Trapeze version 14; Reports module and 
Ripple IVR, no immediate plans to add 
other modules; Avail M-Slate MDTs 
provided 

39 What is the current version number being 
operated for Trapeze PASS? 

See QA# 38 

40 Please describe any additional modules in 
place to supplement the Trapeze PASS 
scheduling and dispatching system. For 
example, tools for call management, 
complaint management, rider 
communication via IVR or text, tablets, 
etc. Are there any Trapeze tools/modules 
SolTrans is considering adding to improve 
service or customer support? 

See QA# 38 

41 Please provide the last 12 months for the 
utilities the Contractor is responsible for 
paying to include electricity, natural gas, 
water, and bus wash materials and 
maintenance 

See Attachment 7. 

42 Please provide all bidders with 12 months 
of historical building utility costs data? 

See QA# 41. 

43 Please provide the current headway 
sheets, paddles, and roster.  

See Attachment 5. 

44 Please provide a copy of the full detailed 
current run cut approved by SolTrans 

See QA# 43 

45 Please clarify the number of vehicles used 
in revenue service by day of week and 
peak service hours and number of buses 
in service at these times. 

See Attachment 6. 

46 The list of vehicles includes 56 buses. On 
page 12 it notes the 'SolTrans fleet 
consists of approximately 57 buses'. In 
addition, Appendix C.1 lists 60 vehicles. 
Please clarify the note on bus 4411 Orion 
that is inoperable; is the Contractor 
required to maintain this vehicle? 

Yes, vehicle 4411 has been 
decommissioned; no maintenance is 
required. There are currently 56 active 
fleet with 2 expansion BYD buses and 2 
replacement MCI's still to come. 

47 Please provide additional information on 
SolTrans provided fleet to include current 
odometer readings and average miles 
operated per year. Please advise if the 
contractor is required to provide any 
items on the bus [fareboxes, radios, MDT, 
etc]. 

See Attachment 8 for odometer report. 
Current Contractor provides Nextel push-
to-talk for driver communications. 

48 For fixed route service, please clarify if 
billable time continues past scheduled 

All authorized vehicle revenue hours are 
billable. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
hours on the last trip due to exterior 
factors (traffic, weather, incidents, etc.). 

49 For paratransit service, please clarify if 
revenue hours begins at the first pick-up, 
even if that pick up is a no show. 

Gate to Gate, minus unpaid breaks and 
excessive slack periods. 

50 Please provide an average daily 
breakdown of revenue hours/miles and 
total hours/miles for the Paratransit 
service for the last 12 months. 

See Attachments 9 and 10. 

51 Please confirm that SolTrans will continue 
to be responsible for fare vault pickup 
after the end of the Garda contract  Jan 2, 
2023 

Yes, confirmed. 

52 The contractor is responsible for all parts 
and major component repairs under 
$5,000 (exclusive of labor) according to 
this section. However, would labor be 
covered if the major component repair 
was completed by outside vendor? i.e. 
engine rebuilt by Cummins. 

Yes, SolTrans will reimburse Contractor 
for outside vendor labor for repairs 
preapproved by SolTrans. 

53 Does SolTrans have a vehicle 
replacement schedule that can be 
shared? Ideally noting which vehicles will 
be replaced in which year and any change 
in vehicle/fuel type anticipated for that 
vehicle.  Any new buses in the process of 
being procured for either replacement or 
expansion? 

See QA# 24. 

54 Please provide annual revenue 
hours/miles, total hours/miles for each 
service (local, express and paratransit) for 
the last 5 years.   

See Attachment 11. 

55 Please provide copies of the last three 
months of invoices from the Contractor. 

See Attachment 12. 

56 Please provide 12 months of invoices 
(current contract). 

See Attachment 12. 

57 Will SolTrans please provide the last 12 
months of incumbent invoicing? 

See Attachment 12. 

58 Please provide the current rates paid to 
the existing contractor for variable and 
fixed costs. Also, please indicate the total 
amount paid to the contractor for the last 
fiscal year. 

See Attachment 12. 

59 Please provide copies of the last three 
months of management reports from the 
Contractor. 

Reporting requirements in the RFP differ 
significantly from the current contract and 
are not comparable. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
60 Please define unclassified revenue. Unclassified or unallocated revenue is 

farebox revenue that cannot  be 
attributed to any specific type of rider 
(e.g. Adult, Youth, Senior, etc.). 

61 Please provide the last 12 months history 
for major component replacement and 
repair for SolTrans provided fleet. 

Data not available. 

62 Are "Fixed Route (FR)" and "Paratransit 
(Para)" section at the top where bidders 
should show all variable costs?   
Vehicle Maintenance and Insurance are 
generally classified as variable costs, but 
are currently listed under the fixed cost 
section.   

See Attachment 1-B - SolTrans Pricing 
Form. Proposers are to use this new Price 
Form in their Price Proposals. 

63 At the bottom of Appendix B it mentions 
that SolTrans is looking for a cost per mile 
for vehicle maintenance, however, there is 
no mention of this under 2.2 (Pg 6 of 35) 
of the Draft Contract that lays out the 
billing methodology.   
Further, section 4.2 of the same draft 
agreement has 8 different functions that it 
is indicating must be presented for billing.  
Please confirm exactly how bidders will 
be paid for services completed and how 
those should be presented to SolTrans in 
the proposal submission. 

Vehicle Maintenance will be classified as 
a variable cost item, See Attachment 1-B. 
Section 2.2 and 4.2 of the Sample 
Contract will be addressed in later 
Addenda. 

64 In the fixed cost section what should 
bidders use the right 3 columns for?   

The General Pricing Fiscal Year Table in 
the original Appendix B.8 of the RFP has 
been replaced with the new SolTrans 
Pricing Form. Please see Attachment 1-B. 

65 If SolTrans is responsible for 
Vehicle/Facility Maintenance Capital Items 
over $500 including these costs in our 
Price Table will artificially inflate our cost 
for the requested contract. Please provide 
direction on how to handle these costs. 

New capital items will be purchased by 
SolTrans or allowed as passthroughs. 
See also Attachment 1-A and Scope of 
Work A.6.14. 

66 Will SolTrans please provide the current 
insurance deductible requirements? 

Requirements regarding insurance 
deductibles will be addressed in later 
Addenda. 

67 Please confirm that all required liability 
insurance limits can be met by any 
combination of primary and excess 
insurance. 

Yes. 

68 Please indicate to bidders which vehicles 
provided in Appendix C are considered 
Non-Revenue Fleet. 

Please see Attachment 4 for non-revenue 
fleet list. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
69 Are the BYD buses under warranty? If so, 

would SolTrans please provide a copy of 
the service contract indicating how long 
the warranty will apply?  

BYD Buses have a 10 year warranty. The 
buses were delivered in 2017. Two more 
buses are arriving in December 2019, also 
with a 10 year warranty. 

70 Please clarify which, if any, of the vehicles 
listed are non-revenue vehicles. Please 
clarify whether SolTrans will provide all 
non-revenue vehicles needed or if the 
Contractor is required to provide road 
supervisor, driver relief cars and shop 
trucks. Does SolTrans have any 
requirements regarding support vehicles?  
Type, number, age limit, fuel type.  How 
many are currently being supplied by the 
contractor?  

SolTrans to provide 5 Road Supervisor 
Vans, 3 shop truck for use by vendor and 
2 automobiles to be used by SolTrans 
Staff. The vendor is required to maintain 
all non-revenue vehicles. Also see QA#68.  

71 Does the facility maintenance of the fuel 
island include the CNG pumps?  

Yes 

72 For maintenance of the generator, does 
this include both generators on site?   

Yes 

73 Please provide a 12-month record of the 
repair and maintenance costs associated 
with the tasks in this section. Also, please 
indicate if there an annual cap on costs. 

See QA# 61. There is no annual cap. 

74 Are there any remaining warranties for the 
fleet or provided equipment? 

Yes 

75 Will SolTrans please provide the make 
and model of the non-revenue vehicles 
provided by the incumbent contractor? 

The incumbent contractor does not 
provide any non-revenue vehicles. See 
Attachment 4. 

76 Will SolTrans please provide the number 
of revenue vehicles that will be made 
available during the transition period? 

See QA#13. 

77 Will SolTrans please provide a fleet 
replacement schedule for the revenue 
fleet? 

See QA# 24. 

78 Please provide detailed information for 
each Fixed Route to help with blocking 
and scheduling.  Please include deadhead 
hours and miles, number of buses 
currently used on each route, pull-out and 
return-to-yard times, etc. 

See QA# 25 and Attachments 2, 3, 5, and 
15. 

79 Has service experienced problems due to 
driver shortages? If so, please explain. 

SolTrans has been affected by driver 
shortage similarly affecting transit 
agencies nationwide. 

80 Please provide an operator seniority list 
including current wages 

No 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
81 Regarding “Specific information as to 

what each primary/supervisor’s job duties 
will entail, how much control they will 
have over the operation at the local level, 
how they will be deployed to ensure 
constant supervision of operations, and 
how much of their time will be dedicated 
to the contract during the start-up tasks” 
– will SolTrans confirm that in this case, 
‘primary/supervisor’ is referring to key 
management positions (General Manager, 
Operations Manager, Safety Manager, 
and Maintenance Manager)? 

Yes. 

82 Complete copies of policies contain 
proprietary information (relating to other 
contracts/customers) which, given the 
possible exposure for release under the 
Freedom of Information Act, we are not 
permitted to release.  Please confirm that 
SolTrans will accept a Certificate of 
Insurance evidencing the required 
coverage as is standard in the industry. 

Yes 

83 Will SolTrans please provide the Loss Run 
Information for all insurance policies for 
the last five (5) years? 

No 

84 Will SolTrans please provide the historical 
major losses over $500,000 within the last 
five years, with a detailed loss description 
for each instance? 

No 

85 Will SolTrans please provide all historical 
crime, theft, and environmental losses 
within the last five years? 

No 

86 Will SolTrans clarify if Garagekeepers 
insurance is required? 

Not specifically. Other insurance 
requirements may be addressed in later 
Addenda. 

87 Will SolTrans please confirm that the 
Contractor is not required to provide Auto 
Physical Damage coverage? 

Contractor will be responsible for physical 
damage to SolTrans vehicles. Other 
insurance requirements may be 
addressed in later Addenda. 

88 Can SolTrans please provide all bidders 
with a list of client provided equipment as 
mentioned in A.3.8, pg. 75/173 so that 
bidders can ensure that they account for 
only necessary equipment in the pricing. 

See Attachment 13. 

89 Please provide a list of shop equipment 
and any tools provided by SolTrans. 

See Attachment 13. 
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
90 Can you please provide a list of all tools 

and equipment which will be provided by 
SolTrans?  

See Attachment 13. 

91 Please provide the type of tire currently 
used and whether there is a lease 
program currently in place.  Further, this 
section indicates that SolTrans can 
dictate the tire brand, has this happened 
in the past? 

The tire lease program is held by the 
Contractor. SolTrans does not dictate the 
brand of tire as long as it meets the OEM. 

92 Please provide a detailed list of all office 
and maintenance furniture and equipment 
provided by SolTrans. Please clarify what 
equipment Contractors are responsible 
for providing 

See Attachment 13, in addition SolTrans 
provides office furniture and computers 
for dispatch, customer service, and 
maintenance. Additional tools may be the 
responsibility of the Contractor. 

93 Is it the intention of SolTrans to own the 
parts inventory for capital items costing 
more than $500? 

Maintenance of parts inventory is the 
responsibility of the Contractor. See also 
QA# 65. 

94 Please confirm Trapeze is hosted by 
SolTrans. Please clarify any Contractor 
responsibility  

Hosted remotely. Contractor not 
responsible for hosting. 

95 Will SolTrans please provide a copy of the 
current Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(CBA)? 

See Attachments 2 and 3. 

96 Please provide the amount of penalties 
assessed against the current service 
provider within the last 12 months. Please 
list by category if available. 

Liquidated damages provisions in the 
RFP differ substantially from provisions in 
the current contract and are not 
comparable. 

97 Please provide a listing of any liquidated 
damages charged or incentives earned by 
month over the past 12 months for each 
category. Please clarify if the liquidated 
damages listed in the RFP differ from the 
current contract. 

Liquidated damages provisions in the 
RFP differ substantially from provisions in 
the current contract and are not 
comparable. 

98 Please provide the last 12 months of 
records of performance for all of the 
liquidated damages listed in this section, 
including the performance achieved and 
the amount of liquidated damages 
assessed for each.  

Liquidated damages provisions in the 
RFP differ substantially from provisions in 
the current contract and are not 
comparable. 

99 At various times, state, federal, and local 
governments change laws, rules and 
regulations which require a company to 
increase the wages or benefits for the 
employees that will be employed under 
this contract.  If such an event occurs 
during the term of the agreement, how will 
the agency respond for a request for 
increased compensation.  For example, 

SolTrans expects the prices quoted for 
each fiscal year shall remain firm during 
the entire term of the contract. Also see 
section 8.1 of the Sample Contract.  
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QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
the recent Affordable Care Act legislation 
significantly affected the level and cost of 
medical coverage for employees. Since 
these events cannot be anticipated and 
the costs are so significant, we need to 
understand the risk associated with such 
laws, rules or regulations. 

100 If the paratransit service is billed gate-to-
gate can you please explain what hours 
make up the difference between revenue 
hours and total hours as listed? 

SolTrans pays for total hours minus 
lunches and unpaid breaks.   

101 Does the current contractor provide the 
facility and bus stop maintenance 
functions? If so, can you provide a reason 
to seek pricing as an option? 

Yes. It was decided that fleet 
maintenance and building maintenance 
are a different function than maintaining 
450 bus stops. 

102 Does the 150 page limit include or 
exclude appendices?  

It excludes Appendices. 

103 Bus Stop & Shelter Maintenance: Please 
confirm SolTrans will provide all parts for 
repairs to include glass, solar panels, 
concrete, frames, etc. Who is responsible 
for light bulbs, trash can liners (if 
required), paint, etc? If the Contractor, 
please provide an estimate of the annual 
cost for these items for the past year. 
Please clarify if the primary requirement 
for pricing is the labor, vehicles and 
equipment needed to perform these tasks 

SolTrans will provide glass, solar panels, 
frames, poles and blades. Contractor is 
responsible to provide soap, trash liners, 
brushes for cleaning. SolTrans provides a 
pressure washer. 

104 Will SolTrans please confirm if the fueling 
stations and electric charging stations are 
to be covered by SolTrans or the 
Contractor? 

Based on the form of the question, it is 
unclear what "covered" means. 

105 Will SolTrans please clarify or identify the 
method that Start-up and Transition costs 
will be paid? 

The successful proposer will be expected 
to invoice SolTrans for approved startup 
costs in July 2020, or earlier if 
appropriate. 

106 Will SolTrans please clarify that capital 
components are to be treated as pass-
through expenses and not part of the 
revenue hour rates? 

Yes that is correct, all capital components 
will be treated as pass-through expenses 
and should not be part of the revenue 
hour rates.  

107 Please provide the current call volume, 
broken down by weekday, Saturday and 
Sunday to include hourly levels if 
possible. Please provide a detailed phone 
report for each day of a typical week with 

Phone report data not readily available at 
this time, and will be provided in later 
addenda. 
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no holidays broken down by hour of each 
day to assist with staff planning 

108 Please indicate the payment method for 
the Bus Stop and Transit Center 
Maintenance Repair and Cleaning Option. 
Is this a fixed monthly fee? Further, 
please indicate how much detail SolTrans 
would like provided with this pricing. 

Bus stop maintenance and repair may be 
billed as either a fixed cost or variable 
cost. Creative approaches for pricing are 
encouraged.  

109 This section requests the Organization 
Chart include wage information; however 
the RFP is clear that no financial 
information should be included in the 
Technical document. Please clarify if we 
should include wage rates here. IF so, 
should it be the average rate, starting 
rate, etc? 

See QA# 11. 

110 For a consistent application of detailed 
pricing and subsequent evaluation, will 
SolTrans please provide an excel file with 
the appropriate level of detail desired? 

See QA# 7.  

111 Will SolTrans please provide a consistent 
format or price sheet for costing the 
optional Bus Stop and Transit Center 
maintenance programs? 

See QA# 7 and QA# 108. 

112 Please provide all route timetables in 
Excel format 

Timetables are provided in PDF format, 
see Attachment 15. Schedules can also 
be downloaded from the SolTrans 
website after December 1, 2019. 

113 Please provide the last 12 months of 
operations reports provided by the 
incumbent operator.  

Data not available. 

114 To conduct an analysis of the current 
paratransit service and review possible 
strategies for service delivery 
improvements, please provide a copy of 
one month of service data from within the 
current Trapeze database. This data 
should include all events (including picks, 
drops, pull-out, lunches, breaks, pull-in, 
etc.) for a normal month excluding 
holidays and reporting to a .xls file format 
for importing. Instructions for the query 
execution are included in the .sql file 
submitted with these questions. 

Data not available. Please see 
Attachments 9 and 10. 
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115 Will SolTrans please provide the current 

vehicle blocking, run cut, run pick, and 
roster of Operators? 

See QA# 43. 

116 Is the contractor responsible for the 
printing of the RTC Discount ID Cards? If 
so, please provide a history of cost 
associated with this item. 

No 

117 What is the name of the Customer 
Relations Management database used by 
SolTrans 

Novo Sharenet 

118 Is SolTrans open to allowing bidders to 
use alternate runcutting software?   

Yes 

119 Will the diagnostic and laptop software, 
and any updates appertaining to the 
equipment be provided by SolTrans or the 
Contractor?   

SolTrans will provide. 

120 Can SolTrans please provide a copy of 
the facility use agreement, referenced in 
this section? 

The facility use agreement has yet to be 
finalized, further clarification may be 
offered in future addenda. 

121 Please provide a diagram of the 
Technology landscape showing 
applications/services, who uses each, are 
they on a server or in the cloud, etc. 

Schedule information imported into Avail 
from TMS; Paratransit scheduled using 
Trapeze and communicates to AVL 
server, data passes through AVL server to 
M-Slate MDTs; Buses communicate to 
AVL coms server; Fueling data entered 
separately into FleetWatch; Maintenance 
work orders entered separately into 
Solutions for Transit; All hosted by 
SolTrans or remotely; Contractor not 
responsible for hosting/maintaining 
systems. 

122 What up/down bandwidth is available to 
the Contractor on SolTrans internet 
service? 

Provisioned for 250 Mbps. 

123 Are there any non-standard system 
applications that need to be installed on 
Contractor’s workstations? 

All workstations are SolTrans owned, 
except for Contractor managers'; 
SolTrans owned workstations are 
supported by SolTrans IT. 

124 Are there any current challenges or 
concerns with provided technology that 
need to be addressed? An example might 
be the system lacks capacity for 
anticipated growth. 

Systems integration; APC certification 
and maintenance; data validation. 

125 Does the Contractor need to provide any 
network cabling or facility IT upgrades? 

No 

126 What systems, applications or on-bus 
technology does the Contractor need to 
provide computers or servers for? 

None 



Addendum No. 4 
2019-RFP-05 Transit Operations and Maintenance Services November 25, 2019 
 

QA Proposer Question SolTrans Response 
127 Please provide detail on the office/facility 

phone and internet lines/connections in 
each work area 

Data not readily available. May be 
provided in future addenda. 

128 For SolTrans provided telephone system, 
are there Service Level Agreements (SLA), 
Business Continuity Plans (BCP) or 
Disaster Recovery (DR) plans that 
Contractors need to follow? If so, please 
provide copies. 

There are no SLA or BCP in place, please 
see Attachment 14, SolTrans Emergency 
Operations Plan. 

129 Please confirm that SolTrans provides the 
internet service the Contractor can use for 
company business 

Yes, within reason. 

130 How many staff are currently utilized for 
bus stop shelter cleaning and 
maintenance. Please confirm contractor 
pricing should include all equipment and 
supplies including vehicles and pressure 
washing equipment? Further, how many 
vehicles are dedicated to these tasks 
today? 

One FTE assigned to cleaning. Contractor 
pricing should include equipment and 
supplies for maintaining bus stops 
excluding shelter components, solar 
panels, lights and trash cans. SolTrans 
provides pressure washer. There is one 
vehicle currently dedicated to this task. 

131 Regarding “Resumes for each of these 
key personnel shall be provided in the 
proposal: General Manager, Operations 
Manager, Safety Manager, and 
Maintenance Manager” will SolTrans 
confirm whether resumes for all key 
personnel are included in the page count 
(150-page limit)? 

150 page limit does not include the Cover 
letter, Appendices (required forms), 
resumes, price proposals, marketing 
materials and brochures (highly 
discouraged). 

132 Will SolTrans please provide the 
employee payroll by class codes for the 
last three years, broken out annually? If 
this information is unavailable, will 
SolTrans please provide the total 
expected payroll amount? 

See QA# 33; Payroll records are not 
available. 

133 Will SolTrans please provide a copy of the 
current seniority list for represented and 
non-union provided positions by 
employment classification? 

See QA# 33 

134 Will SolTrans please provide the annual 
turnover percentage for Operators and 
maintenance personnel by year, for the 
last three years? 

No 

135 Will SolTrans please provide the wages 
and benefits information for all 
employees? 

See QA# 33 

136 Will SolTrans please provide the names 
and contact information of the 
subcontractors (both DBE and non-DBE) 

No 
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the incumbent contractor currently 
utilizes? 

137 Please clarify; The RFP states that: 
“Proposals shall be submitted in two (2) 
separately sealed packages” can the two 
separate packages be in one box? 

Yes they can be in one box, as long as 
each Package (Technical and Price) are 
sealed separately. 

138 Please clarify the format of the proposal, 
can you please provide the title of each 
tab by order? 

Please refer to Section 4.2 of the RFP and 
see Attachment 1-B to this Addendum 
No. 4. 

139 Please indicate whether the contractor 
will have to provide a support/road 
supervisor vehicle. 

No 

140 Please provide the peak vehicles for 
weekdays/ Saturday/ Sunday and the 
average daily pullout 

See QA# 45 and Attachments 6 and 15. 

141 For the accident rate per 100,000 
passengers do you require that for fixed 
and DAR services separately or 
combined? 

Accident rate is per 100,000 miles, not 
passengers; State separately or 
combined, but the Proposer should 
indicate which. 

142 Considering the possible total length of 
the contract would SolTrans allow 
contract option years to be exercisable by 
mutual consent of both SolTrans and the 
contractor? This would reduce the risk for 
contractors and could allow more cost-
effective pricing to SolTrans. 

No. Option years will be exercised at 
SolTrans' sole discretion. 
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